


  

 13 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Planning Board Members in Attendance:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Staff Members in Attendance:   
 
 
 
                            
Members of the Public in Attendance:             
      
                                                                             
 
 
 
 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Chairman E. Murphy called the meeting to order at 7:03pm and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE 

• Approval of minutes from August 3rd, 2023 
 
Motion by C. DiMarzio to approve the August 3rd, 2023, meeting minutes. Seconded by R. 
Starodoj  Discussion. None 
 

Rick Starodoj Chair 
Ed Murphy Vice Chair 
Ken Crosby Absent 
Chris DiMarzio  
Elizabeth Hancock Remote 

Kristen Jacobsen PCD Dept. Admin. Assistant 

Stuart Beckley Town Manager 

Anna Marques Building 
Commissioner/Zoning 
Enforcement Officer 

Bernie Bergeron  

Alex Bergeron  

Jeremy Croteau Remote 

Angela Panaccione PVPC 

TOWN OF WARE 
Planning & Community Development 

126 Main Street, Ware, Massachusetts 01082 
t. 413.967.9648 ext. 120 

Planning Board 
Meeting Minutes from 

Thursday, August 17, 2023 
Selectboard Meeting Room 

126 Main Street, Ware MA 01082 
 
 

 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes from 8/17/2023, Page 2  
 

 
 
 

E. Murphy  Aye 
R. Starodoj  Aye 
K. Crosby  Absent 
E. Hancock  Absent 
C. DiMarzio  Aye 
Three in favor. Two Absent 

 Approved 4/0/1. 
 
 
ANR 

o ANR-2023-03 – 34-33-2 & 34-0-31 Osborne Road 
o Applicant seeks to create one conventional building lot from two parcels. 

Remaining land and frontage would meet regulations for estate lot requirements 
J. Croteau presented the ANR, describing the arrangement of the parcels. The board discussed the 
plan to combine lots and found that the building lot met all area and frontage requirements and the 
Estate lot met all regulations. 
 
Motion by C. DiMarzio to approve ANR-2023-03 as presented. Seconded by R. Starodoj  
Discussion. None 
E. Hancock connected via Zoom 
 

E. Murphy  Aye 
R. Starodoj  Aye 
K. Crosby  Absent 
E. Hancock  Aye 
C. DiMarzio  Aye 
Four in favor. One Absent 

 Approved 4/0/1. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
A.Panaccione presented the draft of the Muddy Brook Subwatershed Resiliency Master Plan. 
A. Panaccione described the process of developing the plan, year 1 deliverables, year 2 work 
plan and timeline. C. DiMarzio asked if there were any plans for restricting uses on abutting 
properties. A. Panaccione said she didn’t believe so but, subdivision regulations may want to 
be revised to address green infrastructure. The board discussed the need for curbing in 
stormwater management. A. Panaccione discussed the upcoming DEP stormwater 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes from 8/17/2023, Page 3  
 

management regulations. The board discussed the possibility of the reopening and size 
increase of the Casella landfill.  
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
Revisit Proposed Zoning Changes : 415 – 417 Belchertown Road (Bergeron) 
S. Beckley reviewed the changes to the proposed RB District Overlay after meeting with A. 
Bergeron and B. Bergeron. The changes included removing the lot size requirement, the 
number of uses previously allowed (Automotive service, labs, and research facilities). The size 
requirement was replaced by a screening requirement. Also, 2 sections (areas on map) of the 
former proposed overlay district areas were removed. 
 
S. Beckley addressed past questions of spot zoning, mentioning the test which can be used to 
test for spot zoning and does not believe this overlay district constitutes spot zoning. 
 
E. Hancock addressed comments from B. Bergeron’s previous inclusion in the RB district, and 
reiterated the property was not historically included in the RB district. A. Bergeron confirmed 
that he understood. E. Hancock and the Bergeron’s discussed the DeSantis property, and that 
it is not included in the revisited district.  
 
E. Hancock suggested only parcels with frontage along rt 9 should be included. C. DiMarzio 
confirmed that was what was included on the plan. E. Hancock listed uses included in the 
previous RB district (hotels, motels, nursing/convalescent homes, government buildings, 
restaurants,  and membership clubs) E. Hancock reviewed the proposed allowed uses. E. 
Hancock recommended seeing a report from the Fire Chief regarding tank farms.   
 
C. DiMarzio suggested cleaning up the language regarding the vegetated buffer. The board 
suggested it should be on any line of sight of the structure and that can be delt with during 
the conditions of the Special Permit. The board discussed who would be proposing the bylaw, 
and if proposed by the Bergerons they would be the proponents. 
 
The board discussed who would be responsible for the fees for the advertising. S. Beckley that 
the town would be responsible because it was  zoning.  
 
Motion by R. Starodoj to end the discussion on the proposed revisited and send the revised 
RB Overlay District Bylaw to the Select Board . Seconded by C. DiMarzio. Discussion. None 

E. Murphy  Aye 
R. Starodoj  Aye 
K. Crosby  Absent 
E. Hancock  Aye 
C. DiMarzio  Aye 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes from 8/17/2023, Page 4  
 

Four in favor. One Absent 
 Approved 4/0/1. 

 
 
Appointment of P.V.P.C. Commission Member and Alternate 
 
The board discussed potential volunteers. C. DiMarzio suggested E. Hancock, E. Hancock had 
questions regarding the meeting arrangements and the ability to attend remotely. K. 
Jacobsen said she’d look into that for her. E. Murphy volunteered to be the  alternate 
member.   
 
Motion by R. Starodoj to defer the  appointment of PVPC commission member and alternate 
until September 5, 2023. Seconded by C. DiMarzio. Discussion. None 

E. Murphy  Aye 
R. Starodoj  Aye 
K. Crosby  Absent 
E. Hancock  Aye 
C. DiMarzio  Aye 
Four in favor. One Absent 

 Approved 4/0/1. 
 
Planning Department Update 
 
S. Beckley said there were many grants in progress 
 
Marylane is moving forward with demolition 
 
Tractor Supply should be in September/October 
 
The towing company has been in contact with the town.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Planning Board Meeting Minutes from 8/17/2023, Page 5  
 

 

Minutes Approved on: ________________ 
 
Starodoj  ____________________________ 
 
Murphy   ____________________________ 
 
Hancock ____________________________ 
 
Crosby   ____________________________ 
 
DiMarzio ____________________________ 
 

ADJOURN 
 
Motion made by R. Starodoj to ADJOURN at 8:34 pm. Seconded by E. Hancock. Discussion: 
None            

 
E. Murphy  Aye 
R. Starodoj  Aye 
K. Crosby  Aye 
E. Hancock  Aye 
C. DiMarzio  Absent 

Four in favor. One Absent 
 Approved 4/0/1. 

 
 
 
 
 
NEXT PLANNING BOARD MEETING DATE: 

 
Thursday, September 7, 2023 at 7:00pm. 

 
 
Minutes from Thursday, August 17, 2023. 
 
Respectfully submitted by,  
 
Kristen Jacobsen 
Administrative Assistant 
Planning & Community Development 
  









SP-2023-05 Project Narrative (transposed from hand written note) 

 

I am proposing to build a two family home that would alter less than 1-acre (40,000 square feet) of land. 

Each home would be on one ground level and would be handicap accessible, it would contain 950-

square feet. 

The north and south wing would have two parking spaces, with a patio for a grill and a table. 

This would be paid for myself and owned by myself 





























 
 

   
 

August 21, 2023 
 
Town of Ware 
126 Main St. 
Ware, MA 01082 
 
RE: Request for Extension, SPR-2019-03 and SP-2019-04 
 
Dear Planning Board Members,  
 
We understand that Robert Watchilla’s former position as Director of Planning is currently vacant, so we 
ask that you route this request to the person or persons filling those duties in the interim. 
 
Please accept the enclosed form, signed by John C. Soper as the owner of the real property located at 45 
Greenwich Road, along with this narrative and accompanying Exhibits, in approval of a 12-month 
extension of time to start construction for the previously approved permits # SPR-2019-03 and SP-2019-
04.   
 
The Special Permit and Site Plan Review for the Ware Solar, LLC project were originally approved on 
September 19, 2019.  Between 2019 until 2022, the project continuously underwent transmission and 
distribution studies administered by National Grid (NG) in coordination with ISO-NE as the Regional 
Transmission Operator.  Impact Study results for the MPL-East Area were compiled by NG in Q4 2022 
and, on December 19, 2022, NG filed docket # 22-170 with the Department of Public Utilities (DPU) 
detailing their Capital Investment Project (CIP) proposal for the Provisional Program under DPU 20-75-B.  
The CIP covers all grid-side improvements proposed by NG across the larger area, including those 
necessary for this project and all others studied in the region. 
 
On April 10, 2023, the DPU published a procedural notice outlining the schedule of dates related to the 
NG CIP hearings across the state (the “Schedule”).  On July 7, 2023, the Attorney General and Group 
Study Developers simultaneously submitted requests for evidentiary hearings to DPU (the “Evidentiary 
Hearing Requests”).  On August 18, 2023, the DPU published its notice of intent (the “Notice”) to 
incorporate the evidentiary record for each of the NG CIPs into one another for efficiency in the 
upcoming evidentiary hearings. The Notice allowed for written comments through August 21, 2023 but, 
as of the date of this request, none had been published in the DPU file room.  As such, the evidentiary 
hearings remain scheduled for the week of September 7-13 as of the date of this request.   
 
  



 
 

   
 

At this time, we presume that DPU will finish its review of the NG CIPs in Q4 2023 and issue their 
approval by year-end 2023.  If so, NG would issue interconnection agreements in Q1 2024, followed by 
the project’s final SMART qualification in 2024.  However, NG’s timeline for construction of the related 
utility-side upgrades will not be finalized until DPU’s approval of the CIP later this year.  As a result, it’s 
possible that further extensions may be required to follow NG’s timeline as ultimately approved by DPU.  
If so, we will submit a further request for extension in 2024 after those details are finalized. 
 
Your office can refer to Docket # 20-75-B created by DPU on November 24, 2021 detailing the 
Provisional Program and Docket # 22-170 created by DPU on December 19, 2022 detailing the proposed 
CIP for the MPL-E area that includes the Town of Ware.  Also attached for supporting documentation are 
copies of the Schedule, Evidentiary Hearing Requests and Notice as Exhibits to this request.   
 
The study process and CIP adjudication process as noted above are beyond the control of Ware Solar, 
LLC (the “Applicant”) and affect all DG projects greater than 1MWac in size within the Central and 
Western Areas designated by NG.  Such studies and related CIPs are required to ensure the integrity of 
the electric distribution grid as the Commonwealth works to achieve its clean energy goals and, since 
they are beyond the control of the Applicant, constitute “good cause” for a corresponding extension of 
time to the related permits. 
 
Sincerely,  
 

 
Donna Jones 
Manager 
JCD Solar Consulting, LLC 
d/b/a Melink Solar Development 
Managing Member 
Ware Solar, LLC 



 
 

 
 

The Commonwealth of Massachusetts 

 —— 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC UTILITIES 

 

 
TO:   Service Lists:   

Massachusetts Electric Company and Nantucket Electric Company,  
D.P.U.  22-170 (Monson-Palmer-Longmeadow (East));  
Massachusetts Electric Company and Nantucket Electric Company,  
D.P.U. 23-06 (Gardner Winchendon); 
Massachusetts Electric Company and Nantucket Electric Company,   
D.P.U. 23-09 (Barre-Athol); 
Massachusetts Electric Company and Nantucket Electric Company,   
D.P.U. 23-12 (Spencer-Rutland)  

VIA:   Electronic Mail  

FROM:  Andrew Strumfels, Hearing Officer 

RE:  Procedural Notice and Ground Rules 

DATE:  April 10, 2023 

CC:   Mark D. Marini, Department Secretary 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

PROCEDURAL NOTICE 

I. PROCEDURAL SCHEDULE 

On March 8, 2023, the Department of Public Utilities (“Department”) conducted a 
consolidated Public Hearing and Procedural Conference in the referenced dockets involving 
Capital Investment Project proposals filed by Massachusetts Electric Company and Nantucket 
Electric Company, each d/b/a National Grid (“National Grid”) (“Dockets”).   

In response to the Hearing Officer’s request, the parties1 submitted a jointly proposed 
procedural schedule (“Jointly Proposed Procedural Schedule”).  Following the consolidated 

 
1  National Grid; the Monson-Palmer-Longmeadow (East) Group Study Coalition; Zero 

Point Development, Inc.; the Barre-Athol Group Study Coalition; the Spencer-Rutland 
 

djone
Highlight



D.P.U. 22-170/D.P.U. 23-06/D.P.U. 23-09/D.P.U. 23-12 Page 2 

   
 

Public Hearing and Procedural Conference for the Dockets, the Hearing Officer contacted the 
parties and participants to the proceedings via email with alternative deadlines to the Jointly 
Proposed Procedural Schedule.  None of the parties or participants expressed objections or 
concerns with the Department’s proposed procedural schedule. 

Therefore, pursuant to 220 CMR 1.06(5), the Department establishes the following 
consolidated schedule for the Dockets.  In setting this schedule, the Department has given 
careful consideration to several important factors including:  allowing the necessary time to 
develop a complete evidentiary record, affording all parties a reasonable time to conduct 
discovery and file testimony and exhibits, and reserving sufficient time for deliberation by the 
Commission.  Finally, in establishing the schedule, the Department has considered its 
obligation to conduct its proceedings in an efficient and orderly manner. 

 
Group Study Coalition, and the Attorney General of the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts (“Attorney General”). 

2  For Intervenors that intend to file testimony, the notice of intent to file testimony must 
contain (1) the identity of each witness and (2) the subject matter on which each 
witness is expected to testify. 

3  Parties shall provide responses to information requests within ten business days of 
receipt of the requests as calculated in accordance with 220 CMR 1.02(4).  However, 
if at any point during the procedural schedule the Department determines a shorter 
response time is warranted to allow for additional discovery prior to the July 14, 2023 
deadline, the Department may shorten the information request response time through 
Hearing Officer Memorandum. 

DATE ACTION 
 

May 12, 2023 Deadline for Intervenors to provide notice of 
intent to file testimony2 

  
June 16, 2023 Deadline for Intervenors to file direct 

testimony 
  
July 7, 2023 
 

Deadline to request evidentiary hearings 
 

July 14, 2023 Deadline for issuing discovery3 
 

July 21, 2023 
 
 

Deadline for Company to file rebuttal 
testimony  
 



D.P.U. 22-170/D.P.U. 23-06/D.P.U. 23-09/D.P.U. 23-12 Page 3 

   
 

 
 

 

 

II. SERVICE LIST 

Due to certain ongoing safety measures and precautions put in place due to the 
COVID-19 pandemic, as outlined in the June 15, 2021 Commission Memorandum 
continuing modified filing requirements, and as outlined in further detail in the ground 
rules below, all filings should be submitted to the Department and parties by electronic means 
only, for the time being. 

 
Mark D. Marini, Department Secretary  
Massachusetts Department of Public Utilities 
One South Station, 5th Floor 
Boston, Massachusetts 02110   
Email:  dpu.efiling@mass.gov  
 
  

 
4  If evidentiary hearings are requested, the Department will further clarify the schedule 

at that time.  Evidentiary hearing participants should ensure their availability for 
September 7, 8, 11, 12, 13, 2023.  Relevant National Grid personnel should plan to 
be available for the entirety of the dates identified for evidentiary hearings. 

5  Surrebuttal testimony shall be limited in scope to new arguments and evidence 
presented by National Grid for the first time after June 16, 2023, that the Intervenors 
have not had the opportunity to address. 

August 4, 2023 
 
August 14, 2023 
 
 
 
September 7, 8, 11, 12, 
13, 20234 
 

Deadline to file responses to discovery 
 
Deadline for Intervenors to file surrebuttal 
testimony5 
 
 
Evidentiary Hearings (if necessary) 
 

September 29, 2023 
 

Deadline for simultaneous initial briefs 

October 13, 2023 Deadline to file simultaneous reply briefs 

djone
Highlight

djone
Highlight

djone
Highlight



D.P.U. 22-170/D.P.U. 23-06/D.P.U. 23-09/D.P.U. 23-12 Page 4 

   
 

Katie Zilgme, Hearing Officer 
Katherine Stock, Hearing Officer 
Andrew Strumfels, Hearing Officer 
Massachusetts Department of Public Utilities 
One South Station, 5th Floor 
Boston, Massachusetts 02110 
Email: katie.zilgme@mass.gov  
 katherine.e.stock@mass.gov 
 andrew.w.strumfels@mass.gov 
 
Nancy Israel, Esq.   
Brooke Skulley, Esq. 
National Grid 
170 Data Drive 
Waltham, Massachusetts 02451 
Email:  nancy.israel@nationalgrid.com   
  brooke.skulley@nationalgrid.com   
For:  MASSACHUSETTS ELECTRIC COMPANY 

AND NANTUCKET ELECTRIC COMPANY 
EACH D/B/A NATIONAL GRID 

  Petitioner 
 
Andrea Joy Campbell, Attorney General 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts 
By:  Jonathan F. Dinerstein 

Christopher Modlish 
Assistant Attorneys General and 
Kelly Caiazzo 
Special Assistant Attorney General 

Office of Ratepayer Advocacy 
One Ashburton Place 
Boston, Massachusetts 02108 
Email: jonathan.dinerstein@mass.gov  

christopher.modlish@mass.gov  
kelly.caiazzo@mass.gov  
Intervenor 

 
  



D.P.U. 22-170/D.P.U. 23-06/D.P.U. 23-09/D.P.U. 23-12 Page 5 

   
 

Ben Dobbs, Esq. 
Sarah McDaniel, Esq. 
Christopher McDonough, Esq. 
Department of Energy Resources  
100 Cambridge Street, Suite 1020  
Boston, Massachusetts 02114  
Email:  ben.dobbs@mass.gov  
 sarah.mcdaniel@mass.gov 
 chris.g.mcdonough@mass.gov  
For: MASSACHUSETTS DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY RESOURCES 

Intervenor 
 
John DeTore, Esq. 
David Fixler, Esq. 
Greenberg Traurig, LLP 
One International Place, Suite 2000  
Boston, Massachusetts 02110 
Email:  detorej@gtlaw.com  
  fixlerd@gtlaw.com  
For: BARRE-ATHOL GROUP STUDY COALITION; MONSON-PALMER 

LONGMEADOW (EAST) GROUP STUDY COALITION; 
SPENCER-RUTLAND GROUP STUDY COALITION; ZERO-POINT 
DEVELOPMENT, INC.; JCD SOLAR CONSULTING, LLC, D/B/A 
MELINK SOLAR DEVELOPMENT; SWEB DEVELOPMENT USA, LLC; 
SUNPIN HOLDINGS, LLC; AND NEXAMP, INC.  

  Intervenors 
 
John Habib, Esq. 
Michael Hershberg, Esq. 
Ashley Marton, Esq.  
Keegan Werlin LLP 
99 High Street, 29th Floor 
Boston, Massachusetts 02110 
Email: jhabib@keeganwerlin.com  
 mhershberg@keeganwerlin.com 
 amarton@keeganwerlin.com 
FOR:  NSTAR ELECTRIC COMPANY D/B/A EVERSOURCE ENERGY 

Limited Participant 
 
  



D.P.U. 22-170/D.P.U. 23-06/D.P.U. 23-09/D.P.U. 23-12 Page 6 

   
 

Thomas Melone, Esq.  
Allco Finance Limited, Allco Renewable Energy Limited 
157 Church Street, 19th Floor 
New Haven, Connecticut 06510 
Email:  thomas.melone@allcoUS.com  
FOR: ALLCO FINANCE LIMITED AND ALLCO RENEWABLE ENERGY 

LIMITED 
  Limited Participant 
 
III. GROUND RULES 

Please refer to the Standard Ground Rules, which can be found at the Department’s 
website at https://www.mass.gov/how-to/file-comments-or-pleadings-with-the-dpu, and the 
following exceptions to the Standard Ground Rules applicable to this proceeding.   

A. Exceptions to Standard Ground Rules 

1. Filing 

In all instances where the Standard Ground Rules reference paper filing or service, 
please disregard.  At this time, parties must submit, serve and exchange all materials only in 
electronic format.  Parties must retain the original paper version and the Department will 
later determine when the paper version must be filed with Mark D. Marini, Department 
Secretary, Department of Public Utilities. Further, parties shall submit all electronic files via 
email only to dpu.efiling@mass.gov.  All materials shall be deemed to be filed or received 
on the date on which the email containing the material is received by the Department. 

2. Protected Materials 

As with all other filings, materials for which confidential protection is sought, or may 
constitute CEII, shall be submitted in electronic format only, marked and distributed via 
email appropriately according to the Standard Ground Rules, and the filing party must retain 
original paper versions to be filed at a later date determined by the Department.  

3. Hearing Arrangements 

The Department is not presently holding in-person evidentiary hearings at the 
Department’s offices.  Arrangements for evidentiary hearings will be decided by the 
Department and communicated to parties prior to the scheduled hearing.   



THE COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 
OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 

ONE ASHBURTON PLACE 
BOSTON, MASSACHUSETTS 02108 

 (617) 727-2200 
 www.mass.gov/ago 
 
 

July 7, 2023 
 
Mark D. Marini, Secretary 
Department of Public Utilities 
One South Station, 5th Floor 
Boston, MA 02110 
 
Re:  Massachusetts Electric Company and Nantucket Electric Company, each d/b/a National 

Grid, D.P.U. 22-170, D.P.U. 23-06, D.P.U. 23-09, and D.P.U. 23-12  
 
Dear Secretary Marini: 
 

Pursuant to the procedural schedule in the above-captioned matters, the Attorney General 
submits her request for evidentiary hearings. Thank you for your attention to this matter. 
 

 
Sincerely, 

       
  /s/ Kelly Caiazzo           

Kelly Caiazzo  
Assistant Attorney General 

 
 
 
Enclosures 
 
cc:  Katie Zilgme, Hearing Officer  
 Katherine Stock, Hearing Officer 
 Andrew Strumfels, Hearing Officer 

Service Lists 
  

djone
Highlight

djone
Highlight



COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC UTILITIES 

 
 
 
Massachusetts Electric Company and 
Nantucket Electric Company, each d/b/a 
National Grid 
 

) 
) 
) 
) 
)  

 
 
D.P.U. 22-170 

 
 
Massachusetts Electric Company and 
Nantucket Electric Company, each d/b/a 
National Grid 
 

) 
) 
) 
) 
)  

 
 
D.P.U. 23-06 

 
 
Massachusetts Electric Company and 
Nantucket Electric Company, each d/b/a 
National Grid 
 

) 
) 
) 
) 
)  

 
 
D.P.U. 23-09 

 
 
Massachusetts Electric Company and 
Nantucket Electric Company, each d/b/a 
National Grid 
 

) 
) 
) 
) 
)  

 
 
D.P.U. 23-12 

 
 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 

I hereby certify that I have this day served the foregoing document upon all parties of 

record in these proceedings in accordance with the requirements of 220 C.M.R. 1.05(1) 

(Department’s Rules of Practice and Procedure).  Dated at Boston this 7th day of July, 2023. 

 /s/ Kelly Caiazzo 
 Kelly Caiazzo  

Assistant Attorney General 
Massachusetts Attorney General  

 Office of Ratepayer Advocacy 
 One Ashburton Place 
 Boston, MA 02108 
 (617) 727-2200 

djone
Highlight



 

 
 
 

The Commonwealth of Massachusetts 
 —— 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC UTILITIES 
 

 

TO: Service Lists 
Massachusetts Electric Company and Nantucket Electric Company, D.P.U. 22-61 
(Shutesbury) 
Massachusetts Electric Company and Nantucket Electric Company, D.P.U. 22-170 
(Monson-Palmer-Longmeadow (East)) 
Massachusetts Electric Company and Nantucket Electric Company, D.P.U. 23-06 
(Gardner-Winchendon) 
Massachusetts Electric Company and Nantucket Electric Company, D.P.U. 23-09 
(Barre-Athol) 
Massachusetts Electric Company and Nantucket Electric Company, D.P.U. 23-12 
(Spencer-Rutland) 

FROM: Katherine Stock, Hearing Officer 

RE: Evidentiary Record in Massachusetts Electric Company and Nantucket Electric 
Company, D.P.U. 22-61; D.P.U. 22-170, D.P.U. 23-06, D.P.U. 23-09, and 
D.P.U. 23-12 

DATE: August 18, 2023 

CC: Mark D. Marini, Secretary  

______________________________________________________________________________ 
Notice of Intent to Incorporate By Reference 

By this Notice of Intent to Incorporate by Reference (“Notice”), the Department of Public 
Utilities (“Department”) states its intention, pursuant to 220 CMR 1.10(3) to incorporate the 
evidentiary record in each pending Massachusetts Electric Company and Nantucket Electric 
Company, each d/b/a National Grid (“National Grid”) Capital Investment Project (“CIP”) 
referenced above into the record of the other pending National Grid CIPs, namely:  

 Massachusetts Electric Company and Nantucket Electric Company, D.P.U. 22-61  
 Massachusetts Electric Company and Nantucket Electric Company, D.P.U. 22-170  
 Massachusetts Electric Company and Nantucket Electric Company, D.P.U. 23-06 
 Massachusetts Electric Company and Nantucket Electric Company, D.P.U. 23-09  
 Massachusetts Electric Company and Nantucket Electric Company, D.P.U. 23-12  

 

djone
Highlight

djone
Highlight

djone
Highlight

djone
Highlight



Notice of Intent to Incorporate By Reference      Page 2 

 
In stating this intention, the Department determines that all of these CIP proceedings have 
substantial common identity of parties, factual issues, and legal issues.  Based on these common 
relationships, the Department finds that it is appropriate and efficient to incorporate the 
evidentiary record in each of the pending National Grid CIPs into one another.   
Any party to any of the listed proceedings may file written comments regarding this Notice no 
later than the close of business (5:00 pm) on August 21, 2023.  The Departments’ standard rules 
for electronic filing apply.  

djone
Highlight

djone
Highlight

























W i n t e r  2 3 / 2 4 - P a g e 1  
 

 
 
 
 
To:  Selectboard 
From:  Planning Board 
Date:  September 21, 2023 
Subject: Recommendations for Plowing and Sanding Unfinished Subdivision Roads – 

Winter 2023/24 

Dear Members of the Selectboard:  

The Planning Board wishes to provide the following recommendations regarding plowing and 
sanding of the Town’s privately owned roadways: 

BELAIR DRIVE (Belair Estates):  
• It appears that no repairs have been made to this road for some time 
• Road condition has gotten worse since last year 
• Owner used concrete on exposed manholes to smooth the road 
• We recommend that Belair Drive NOT be plowed nor sanded this winter 

 
HIGH MEADOW LANE 

• The road serves as someone’s driveway and has not been plowed in the past 
• We recommend that High Meadow Lane NOT plowed and sanded by the Town 

this winter. 
 
COLDBROOK DRIVE (Penny brook Estates): 

• The road is in good condition. 
• We recommend that Coldbrook Drive be plowed and sanded by the Town this 

winter. 
 
KING GEORGE DRIVE 

• The DPW has plowed this private road in the past 
• Road is still in good condition but is starting to show signs of deterioration. 
• We recommend that King George Drive be plowed and sanded this winter. 

 
LEE ROAD 

• The DPW has plowed this private road in the past 
• There are two easements placed on Lee Road for the purposes of plowing, 

drainage and general road maintenance. 
• Road conditions are showing signs of deterioration. 
• We recommend that Lee Road be plowed and sanded this winter. 

TOWN OF WARE 
Planning & Community Development 
126 Main Street, Ware, MA  01082 

t. 413.967.9648 ext. 120 
 

MEMORANDUM 



W i n t e r  2 3 / 2 4 - P a g e  2  
 

 
 
 
WALTER DRIVE (Edgewood Estates):  

• The basecoat continues to deteriorate but still in good condition. 
• There appear to be no problems for either the Town or the owner if the Town 

plowed and sanded this winter. 
• We recommend that Walter Drive be plowed and sanded by the Town this winter 

 
WILDFLOWER DRIVE & BRIAR CIRCLE (Isabella Ridge): 

• Roads are showing early signs of deteriorating. 
• We recommend that Wildflower Drive and Briar Circle be plowed and sanded by 

the Town this winter. 
 
WILLISTON DRIVE 

• Only the eastern section of 
Williston Drive has been 
accepted by the Town (see 
photo) 

• The DPW has historically 
plowed and sanded the 
entire length of this road so 
that the trucks could turn 
around easily. 

• Roads are showing early 
signs of deterioration. 

• Potholes are in need of repair prior to paving. 
• We recommend that the entirety of Williston Drive be plowed and sanded this 

winter. 
 
SUMMARY 
The Planning Board recommends directing the DPW to manage sanding and snow and ice 
removal on the private section of Williston Drive and on the private roads Coldbrook Drive, 
King George Drive, Lee Road, Walter Drive, Wildflower Drive, Briar Circle, and Williston Drive 
during the Winter of 2023-2024 (FY24).  The Planning Board is recommending the potholes 
on Williston Drive be repaired prior to snow and ice removal. 
 
Thank you. 

  




	Memo to SB 09-21-2023.pdf
	Town of Ware




